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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of
INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS Financial Statements of INDUTCH COMPOSITES
TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), statement of Change in Equity Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and
notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind As financial statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Ind As and accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, its profit, total comprehensive
income, change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on auditing specified under
section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with
the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the code of ethucs, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.




Emphasis of Matter

Your attention is drawn to Note Nos.: 33- Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in
“Trade and work-in-progress, 38- Exceptional Items, 48- Transition to Ind AS 116 Leases',
49- Corporate Social Responsibility, 50 - Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on the Business
forming part of the Statement of account.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thercon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial  statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and those charged with governance for Ind AS
Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5} of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial
performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the finanaal
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing Uic
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management




either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 1o real
alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reportin
process.

o
o

Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assessthe risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion .The risk of not

detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate i the
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness  of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw altention inn our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However. future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a gomg
concern.




] Evaluate the overallpresentation,structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We  describe these

matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences ol doing s
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), 1ssued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our
audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act.




e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls.
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would
impact its financial position.

ii, The Company has long term contracts as on 31 March, 2020, for
which there were no material foreseeable losses. The company did not
have derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company .

3. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under Section
197(16) of the Act: In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the
Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down
under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed
other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by
us.

For, VCA & ASSOCIA _
Chartered Acco
FRN: 1144 14W/

(Partné€r)
MRN. : 048169

Place: Vadodara
Date: 29/06/2020 .
UDIN: 20048169AAAABES380



«Annexure A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the yvear ended
March 31, 2020:

1) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property Plant & Equipment;

(b) The Property Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the management in
a phased manner, designed to cover all the items over a period of three years,
which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
nature of its business. Pursuant to the program, a portion of the Property Plant &
Equipment has been physically verified by the management during the year and no
material discrepancies between the books records and the physical Property Plant
& Equipments have been noticed.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

2) The management conducted the physical verification of inventory at reasonable
intervals, during the year. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification, were
not material.

3) The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained
under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (¢} of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence 1ot commented upon.

4) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans.
investments, guarantees, and security.

5) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and hence the directives
issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules,
2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are not applicable.

6) As per informed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the
central Govenment under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried on by the company.

7) (a) According to information and explanations given Lo us and on the basis ol our
examination of the books of account, and records, the Company has been generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Income-
Tax, Duty of Customs, Goods and service tax , Cess and any other statutory dues
with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of the above were in arrears as at March, 31, 2020 for the period
of more than six months from the date on when they become payable.




(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are following dues of
outstanding on account of any dispute.

Name of | Name of ‘ Amount ' Period to which Forum
Statue Dispute | (Rs) - amount relates  where
i | pending
| Income  Tax | TDS Penalty i 6,47,893 | AX 2016-17 ITAT
Act. 1961 | . .
Income Tax | Regular Ejis" 23,58,360 =) AY 2014-15 FC_IT_[*J LS IR
Act, 1961 Assessment
Income  Tax | Regular 14,71,768 AY 2016-17 | CIT (A)
Act, 1961 Assessment ' i
|

8) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks. The Company has not
taken any loan either from financial institutions or from the government and has not
issued any debentures.

9) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not raised moneys by way of imitial public
offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term Loans. Accordingly.
the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.

10) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the company
by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

11) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the managerial remuneration has been paid or provided 1n
accordance with the requisite approvals and resolutions mandated by the provisions
of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act;

12) In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions ol
clause 4 (xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

13) In our opinion, all transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed m the Ind
AS Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
given by the management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year
under review. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.




15) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanation:
given by the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions
of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not
commented upon.

16) In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

For, VCA & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Account
FRN: 114414W

(Partner)
MRN. : 048169

Place: Vadodara

Date: 29/06/2020




«Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory
Requirement’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2020:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over finanecial reporting of INDUTCH
COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company’) as of March 31, 2020
in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in th
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence 1o company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required unde:
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company s internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
«Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143( 10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and il
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assgesment of the risks of
material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, :&:hethe' due to fraud or error.

—
-



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting aid uUic
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance tha
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition ol the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, matenal
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential Components of
Internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Ovel
Financial Reporting issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, VCA & ASSOCIAT
Chartered Accoun
FRN: 1144 14W

CA. Ash
(Partner)
MRN. : 048169

Place; Vadodara
Date: 29/06 /2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Indutch Composites Technologies Pvt Ltd

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Results of Indutch Composites Technologies Pvt Ltd
(“the Company”) for the quarter ended on March 31,2020 (which is derived as balancing figure of
the difference between audited figures in respect in financial year ended on March 31,2020 and the
publish unaudited year to figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year ended on
December 31,2019 which were subject to limited review by us ) and the year to date results for the
period from April 01,2019 To March 31,2020, attached herewith, being submitted by the Company
pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (‘Listing Regulations’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial results:

i. Are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing
Regulations in this regard; and

ii. give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in the applicable accounting standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India of its net profitand other comprehensive income and other financial
information for the quarter ended March 31, 2020 as well as for the year to date results for
the period from April 1, 2019 To March 31, 2020.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(“sA”s) specified under section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the code
of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI") together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our oth hisal responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. :




We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion on the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibilities for the standalone financial results

These quarterly financial results (which is derived as balancing figure of the difference between
audited figures in respect of financial year ended on March 31,2020 and the published unaudited
year to date figures up to the third quarter of the current financial year ended on December 31,2015
which were subject to limited review ) as well as the year to date financial results have been
prepared on the basis of the audited annual financial statements for the year ended March 31,2020.
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
Financial Results that give a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and
other financial information of the company in accordance with the recognisition and measurement
principle laid down Indian accounting standard 34 ‘interim financial reporting’ prescribed under
section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. The
respective Boards of Directors of the companyare responsible for maintenance of adeguate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the financial results by the Directors of the Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone annual financial
results as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butl is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone annual financial results,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis-for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraH_‘c&g/_- 3 qé’f‘t el o




resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone annual financial
results, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards. '

For VCA & Associates
Chartered Accountant
FRN: 114414W

Partner

MRN. : 048169
Place: Vadodara
Date: 29-06-2020




INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.

Ralance Sheet as at 31st March,2020
{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Nota No | Asat31st March, As at 31st March,
2020 2019
ASSETS
(1) Non-Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 6 86,62,81,690 8,10,68,542
(b) Capital work-in-progress - 6,01,26,485
(c) Intangible Assets 7 62,14,360 18,23,422
(d) Financial Assets
(i) Deposits 8 4,82,76,778 3,13,30,407
{e) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 9 (65,61,188) 43,79,147
(f) Other non-current assets 10 16,91,72,281 15,58,75,450
Total non-current assets 1,08,33,83,920 33,46,03,454
{2) Current Assets
{a) Inventories 11 28,45,59,417 14,50,35,167
{(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 12 1,84,67,722 1,09,867
(i) Trade receivables 13 14,41,43,507 16,06,76,215
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 14 2,60,680 7.23,94,693
(iv) Other Bank Balances 15 30,50,000 1,27,80,050
(v) Loans / Deposits 16 73,53,699 45,59,058
(vi} Other Financial assets 17 24,281 3,77,495
(c) Current Tax Assets {net) 18 2,09,77,069 -
{d) Other current assets 19 94,60,909 57,43,618
Total current assefts 48,82,97,284 40,16,76,163
Total assets 1,57,16,81,204 73,62,79,617
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 20 4,21,54,940 4,21,54,%40
{b) Other Equity 21 31,95,22,081 32,94,77,066
Total equity 36,16,77,021 37,16,32,006
Liabilities
(1) Non-Current Liahbilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 22 25,33,77,720 13,71,98,169
(i) Other Financial liabilities 23 47,04,81,063 1,18,57,673
{b) Provisions 24 2,97,52,714 1,46,26,368
Total non-current liabilities 75,36,11,497 16,37,42,210
(2) Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities g
(i) Borrowings 25 5,91,15,312 &
(i} Trade payables 26
A) Due to Micro & Small enterprises 3,58,16,216 41,07,520
B) Due to Other than Micro & Small enterprises 18,58,93,990 15,25,83,914
(iii) Other Financial liabilities 27 11,13,12,487 63,48,852
(b) Other current liabilities 28 5,22,92,931 3,15,86,292
(c) Provisions ' 29 1,19,61,748 62,78,823
Total current liahilities 45,63,92,685 20,09,05,401
Total 1,57,16,81,204 73,62,79,617
Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements | 1to50
As per our report of even date attached
For VCA & Associaf For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accoupftants : )\(\ SATHIAN, S
FRN:114414W Sl N\ a ARAYAN
AN R}ﬁ . ANPL ==
CA. Ash P, Binayak Rath P L Sathinarayanan
® 'vaDoDARA | € e \ ¥
Partne g 1 Director Director
Membership No. 048169 DIN: 02784819 DIN: 02852765
Place : Vadodara ; Place : Vadodara
Date : 29th June 2020 Date: 29th June 2020




INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2020

{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Rt o, For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
l|Revenue from operations 30 95,95,19,838 75,49,38,701
[1{Other income 31 56,859,271 34,77,200
lll{Total income (I+11) 96,52,09,109 75,84,15,901
IV|EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed 32 30,50,25,812 23,48,36,596
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-| 33 (11,62,23,325) (5,80,66,321)
progress
Employee Benefits Expense 34 31,04,97,143 20,17,78,801
Finance Costs 35 5,38,54,566 94,31,027
Depreciation and amortization expense 36 11,78,82,842 « 1,56,47,696
Other Expenses 37 29,09,05,686 28,02,84,153
Total expenses (IV) 96,19,42,725 68,39,11,953
V|Profit before exceptional item and tax (IlI-IV) 32,66,384 7,45,03,948
Exceptional items 38 (32,55,676) (1,05,46,117)
Profit Before Tax 10,708 6,39,57,831
VI|Tax expense: 39 1,08,26,239 1,93,21,337
(a) Current tax relating to: Prior Period items
current year - 2,14,27,000
earlier years 1,88,259 -
(b) Deferred tax 1,06,37,980 (21,05,663)
VIl Profit for the year (V-VI) (1,08,15,531) 4,46,36,494
Vill| Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
() Re-measurement of the defined benefit plans 11,62,902 78,768
- tax impact (3,02,355) (21,913)
8,60,547 56,855
IX| Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+Viil) (99,54,984) 4,46,93,349
X|Earnings per equity share: 40
Basic (in ") (2.57) 10.59
Diluted (in 7) (2.57) 10.59
Accompanying Notes to Financial Statements 1to 50

As per our report of even date attached
For VCA & Associates
Chartered Accountasits
FRN:114414W

CA. Asho
Partner
Membership No. 048169
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Date : 29th June 2020
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INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.

Stetement of Changes in Equity for the year ended on 31st march, 2020

Equity Share Capital

Particulars Amount in Rs.
Balance as on 1st April, 2018 2,99,76,840
Changes during the year 1,21,78,100
Balance as on 31st March, 2019 4,21,54,940
Changes during the year -
Balance as on 31st March, 2020 4,21,54,940

Other Equity {Amount in Rs.)
Reserves and Surplus
Facias Security Premium s ey Retained Earnings Tatal
eserve

Balance as at 1st April, 2018 1,54,43,672 3,35,18,443 4,89,62,115
Profit / Addition for the year 23,58,21,600 - 4,46,36,494 28,04,58,094
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) - - 56,855 56,855
Total comprehensive income for the year 23,58,21,600 - 4,46,93,349 28,05,14,949
Payment of dividend - - - -
Tax on dividends = - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 25,12,65,272 - 7,82,11,792 32,94,77,064
Profit / Addition for the year - {1,08,15,531) (1,08,15,531)
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax) - 8,60,547 8,60,547
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (99,54,984) (99,54,984)
Utilised for issue of Bonus Shares (including issue expenses) - - - -
Payment of dividend = . = =
Tax on dividend - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 25,12,65,272 - 6,82,56,809 31,95,22,081

As per our report of even date attached

For VCA & Associates
Chartered Accountan
FRN:114414W

Membership No. 048169

Place : Vadodara
Date : 29th June 2020

For and on behalf of the Board

s,
R

Binayak Rath
Director
DIN: 02784819

Place : Vadodara

Date : 29th June 2020
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P L Sathinarayanan
Director
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INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2020

{Amount in Rs.)

ARAYAN
AN PL

IRl S SISA5,
=SATHIANARATANAN A
Date 202006 29175252 405'30

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
[A] CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 32,66,384 7,45,03,948
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense 11,78,82,842 1,56,47,696
Interest to Banks / Financial Lease 5,33,53,839 52,47,860
Loss on Property, Plant and Equipment sold/discarded (net) - s
Unwinding of discount 8,06,551 1,90,880
Re-measurement of Defined benefit plans (11,62,902) (78,768)
Interest Income (10,89,856) (11,08,344)
Dividend received - -
Net Profit on sale of Current Investments (13,57,855) (1,09,867)
Net gain on investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss - -
Sundry balances written back (net) - -
Unrealised foreign exchange loss/(gain) - -
Operating Profit before changes in working capital 17,16,99,003 9,42,93,406
Adjustment for (Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets
Inventories (13,95,24,250) (8,31,64,043)
Trade Receivables 1,65,32,708 38,94,471
Other Financial Assets (10,72,03,638) (5,91,04,043)
Other Assets (37,17,291) (4,64,548)
Adjustment for Increase/(Decrease) in Operating Liabilities
Trade Payables 6,50,18,772 4,95,77,576
Provisions 1,99,42,720 1,07,06,700
Other Liabilities 52,00,75,338 (9,13,61,142)
Cash flow from operations after changes in working capital 54,28,23,363 (7,56,21,624)
Net Direct Taxes (Paid)/Refunded (2,15,05,131) (2,14,52,542)
Net Cash Flow from/{used in) Operating Activities 52,13,18,232 (9,70,74,166)
[B] CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment including Capital (71,30,68,162) (17,58,85,938)
Advances & CWIP
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - -
Purchase of Investments (6,00,00,000) (1,09,867)
Sale of Investments 4,30,00,000 -
Interest Income 28,24,423 14,88,115
Dividend Income - -
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents 97,330,050 29,14,450
Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Investing Activities (71,75,13,689) (17,15,93,240)
&Y
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[C] CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Borrowings 11,88,32,411 10,64,22,036
Repayment of Borrowings (26,52,860) -
Issue of Equity Share Capital - 24,79,99,700
Payment of dividend distribution tax - -
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Working Capital Borrowings 5,91,15,312 (1,91,69,709)
Interest Expenses (5,12,33,420) (52,47,860)
Net Cash Flow from/(used in} Financing Activities 12,40,61,444 33,00,04,166
Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (7,21,34,013) 6,13,36,760
Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of year (see Note 1) 7,23,94,693 1,10,57,933
Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year (see Note 1) 2,60,680 7,23,94,693

Notes:

1 Cash and Cash equivalents comprise of:

Cash on Hands 72,720 74,594
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts 1,87,960 1,23,20,098
In Fixed Deposits - 6,00,00,000
Cash and Cash equivalents as restated 2,60,680 7,23,94,693

2 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian

Accounting Standard (Ind AS)- 7 "Statement of Cash Flows",

reclassified wherever nacessary.

figures of the previous year have been regrouped /

Particulars Long-term borrowings  Short-term borrowings
Opening Balance 13,71,98,169 -
(3,07,76,134) -
Cash flow 11,61,79,551 2:91,45.352
(10,64,22,036) -
Non Cash Changes - -
Closing Balance 2533 77720 5,91,15,312
(13,71,98,169) -
As per our report of even date attached
For VCA & Assaciates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountan )f"\ SATHIAN Soom
FRN:114414 W > ARAYANA -
‘ N PL
CA. Ashok Binayak Rath P L Sathinarayanan
Partner Director Director
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INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
Notes to the financial statements

1 Corporate information:
Indutch Composites Technology Private Limited was incorporated in 2010 as private limited Company and presently has registered office

at 401, Pawan Complex, 9 Prakash Colony, Jetalpur Road, Alkapuri Vadodara, Gujarat-390007. The company is a leading manufacturer of

Composite Moulds and related solutions provider in wind energy sector - having facilities at Vadodara and Chennai.
As at March 31,2020, munjal auto limited , the holding company owned 55% of the company's equity share capital.

2 Application of new Indian Accounting Standards:
The Indian Accounting Standards issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) till the financial statements are authorized have been considered in preparing these financial
statements.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2019 has not notified the new Ind AS and certain amendments to existing Ind
ASs. Hence, the disclosure is not applicable.

3 Basis of preparation and presentation:

Statement of Compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards {referred to as “Ind
AS") as prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as amended from time to time.

i. Accounting Convention:

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments
that are measured at fair values and the defined benefit plans, at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goads and services.

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded off to the nearest two decimal Lacs
except otherwise stated.

Operating Cycle:

Based on the nature of products/ activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realization in
cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its aperating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and
liabilities as current and non-current.

4 Significant Accounting Policies:
. Property, plant and equipment;
Property, plant and equipment (including furniture, fixtures, vehicles, etc.) held for use in the preduction or supply of goods or services, or

for administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,

Cost of acquisition is inclusive of freight, duties, taxes (other than these available for set off)and other incidental exXpenses.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Cost includes items directly attributable to the construction or acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment,
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,

on the same basis as-other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less their
residual values over their useful lives, using the written down value method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Depreciation has not recorded on capital work-in-progress until construction and installation is complete and the asset is ready for its

Depreciation is charged on a pro-rata basis at the written down value method over estimated economic useful lives of its property, plant
and equipment generally in accordance with that provided in the Schedule Il to the Act. Estimated useful lives of these assets are as

under:

Description Years
Building 30-60
Lease Assets over Hieeomat

period
~

Plant & Machinery 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Vehicles 8 £s
Office Equipment 5
Computers 2
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Anitem of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a written down value basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life
and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Company has estimated the useful life of such intangible assets for the period of 5 years - life as estimated by the

Intangible assets is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses

arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

iv Impairment of tangible and intangible assets:
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset {or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement
of Profit and Loss. When an impairment loss subseqguently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable/ usable value. Finished goods and work-in-progress (along with Stock in
transit and stock lying at customer's location) include appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Inventory of stores and spare parts is valued at FIFD basis at cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower,

=

Service Work in Progress

Service Work in Progress is valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Service Work in Progress represents closing inventory of
parts/ consumables and labour consumed in Jobwork, of Windmill Blades, as per contracted terms. Hence, this represents work performed
under contractual liability in bringing this inventory to its present condition and location. Net realisable value is the contract price as per
the Agreement.

vii Revenue Recognition:

On 28 March 2018, the MCA notified Ind AS 115, a new revenue recognition standard that replaces existing Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18. Ind

AS 115 is applicable from 1 April 2018, i.e., FY 2018-19. The core principle of Ind AS 115 is that revenue needs to be recognised when an
entity transfers the control of goods and services to customers at an amount that the entity expects to be entitled. The application of the

standard does not have any significant Impact on the retained earnings as at 1st April, 2018 or on these financial statements.

{a) Revenue from the sale of goods and or services is recognised when :
-the Company has entered into a contract for supply of goods or services with an identifed customer;
-the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
-the Cormpany has perfomed its intended obligation;
- upon acceptence of relevant tests Company passes on managerial/ effective control;
-it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company

{b) Dividend and interest income:

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been established.
Interest income from financial assets is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amaunt of income can be measured reliably, Interest income is accrued on, time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

vi. Leases:
The Company determines whether an arrangement contains a lease by assessing whether the fulfilment of a transaction is depen
the use of a specific asset and whether thetransaction conveys the right to use that asset to the Company in return for payment.
this occurs, the arrangement is A
deemed to include a lease and is accounted for either as finance or an operating lease. Mﬁ
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vii.

wiii.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and or
the present value of minimum lease payments substantially cover fair value of the asset. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as lessee.at the commencement of lease term, company has recognised such lease as
assets and liabilites in the balance sheet at the present value of lease payments to be made over the period of time( except short term
lease or low value assets) .

Foreign Currency Translation
i. Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements are measured in currency of primary environment in which the company operates and hence
the statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR).

ii Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates, on the date of the transactions and
balances are restated at the reporting date, and any differences there on are recognised on Net basis within Other Income, in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Borrowing costs:

Long term Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, which are subsequently measured at
amortised costs.

Borrowings are derecognised when he obligation specified in the contract is disharged, cancelled or expired and the difference between
carrying amount of liability alongwith its relevent Asset adjusted will be recognised as either the Profit or Loss in Other Income.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction ar production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Al other borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

ix. Employee Benefits:

(a) Short-term employee benefits:

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving employee services are classified as short-term employee benefits.
These benefits include salaries and wages, performance incentives and compensated absences which are expected to occur in next twelve
months. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recoghized as an
expense as the related service is rendered by employees.

(b) Post-employment Benefits:

{1) Defined Contribution Plan:

pPayments to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits in respect of provident fund, for which both the
employees and the Company make monthly contributions at 2 specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.

{2) Defined Benefit Plan:
Defined retirement benefit plans comprising of gratuity are recognized based on the present value of defined benefit obligation which is
computed using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

These are accounted either as current employee cost or included in cost of assets as permitted.

Net interest on the net defined liability is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset and is recognised the Statement of Profit and Loss except those included in cost of assets as permitted.

Remeasurement of defined retirement benefit plans comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if
applicable) and the return on plan assets {excluding net interest as defined above), are recognised in other comprehensive income except
those included in cost of assets as permitted in the period in which they occur and are not subsequently rectassified to the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Financial Statements represents the actual deficit or surplus in the Company’s defined
benefit plans. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present value of any ecanomic benefits available in the form of
reductions in future contributions to the plans.

(¢) Other long term employee benefits:
The obligation for long term employee benefits such as long term compensated absences is measured at present value of estimated

future cash flows expected to be made by the company and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of defined benefit plans vide
(b)(2) supra.

Long term employee benefit costs comprising curr ice cost, interest cost implicit in long term employee benefit cost and g @
losses on curtailments and settlements, re-meas

Loss as employee benefit expenses. 4G >
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X. Income Taxes:

xi.

Hii.

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

(a) Current Tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

(b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and lizbilities in the Financial Statements

and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the

Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax {(MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future
economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax
asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable that the futuré economic benefit associated with
asset will be realised.

lc} Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax expense is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that

the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value (at long term effective rate as last availed term
finance)of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

Contingent assets are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in the Financial Statements by way of notes to accounts, unless possibility of an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefit is remote.

Product Warranty expenses:

The estimated liability for product warranties is recorded when products are sold. These estimates are established using historical
information en the nature and cost of warranty claims, as per management estimates regarding possible future incidences based on type
of products and its failure expcetations. The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise, being liable up to three
years.

Financial Instruments:

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through the

tive interest methad is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating interest incol
ver the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or payments thro

ed life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. S
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xiii.

Xiv.

A

Financial Assets:

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

{a) Financial assets at amortised cosi:

Financial assets having contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding and that are held within a business model whose objective is to hold such assets in order to collect such
contractual cash flows are classified in this category. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment losses:

(b) Financial assets at fair value through Profit or Loss:

Financial assets are measured at fair value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) unless it is measured at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income on initial recognition. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at fair
value through Profit or Loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(¢) Impairment of financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether a financial asset or 2 group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 reguires
expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for trade receivables
that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to 12
month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to lifetime expected losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

{d) Derecognition of financial assets:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the

financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party, or when he company has no
reasonable expectaion of recovering a financial asset in its entireity or a portion thereof.
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety (except for equity instruments designated as FVTOCI), the difference between the

asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments:
Debt and equity instruments issued by Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance
of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an eguity instrument.

{a) Financial liabilities:

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently measured at amortised cost are
determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the
Where the time value of money is significant, Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and
are subseguently measured at amortised cost, Using the effective interest rate method .

Interest bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the barrowings in the statement of profit and loss.

(b) Equity instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interests in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its lizbilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(c) Derecognition of financial liabilities:

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in
‘the Statement of Profit and Loss.

. Eirst-time adoption — mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions:

{a) Overall principle:

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 1, 2016 (‘the transition date’) by recognising all assets and
liabilities whase recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by
reclassifying certain items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS as required under the Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in the measurement of
recognised assets and liabilities. However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and certain optional exemptions
availed by the Company as detailed below.

{b) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities:

The Company has applied the derecognition requirements of financial assets and financial liabilities prospectively for transactions
occurring on or after 1st April, 2017 (the transition date).

airment of financial assets:

‘Company has applied the impairment reguirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has
asdhable and supportable information that Is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at the date
fnanicial instruments were initially recognised in order to compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company
not w:értaken an exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there have beef
E:aalﬁt increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as permitted by Ind AS 101. -
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{d) Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment and intangible assets as recognised as of
April 01, 2016(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition
date.

(e} Fair value measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition:
The Company has applied the requirements in paragraph B5.1.2A {b) of Ind AS 109 prospectively to transactions entered into on or after
the date of transition to ind AS. This exemption has been availed by the Company.

i. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows are reported using indirect method, whereby PAT is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals
or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments or items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing
cash flows. The cash flows are segregated into a operating, Investing and Financing Activities.

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Company accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the management of the Company are reguired to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that peried, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates are recorded for long term impacting values at the effective rate applicable
to the company as per latest evaluation for its long term borrowings.

(i) Critical judgments in applying accounting policies:
The following are the areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements that the management has made in the process of applying

the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:-

(a) Evaluation of indicators for impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment:

The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of external factors (significant decline asset’s
value, economic or legal environment, market interest rates etc.) and internal factors (obsolescence or physical damage of an asset, poor
economic performance of the asset etc.) which could result in significant change in recoverable amount of the Property, Plant and
Equipment.

(ii) Assumptions and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

(a) Assets and obligations relating to employee benefits:

The employment benefit obligations depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of
assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (income) include the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions.
Any changes in these assumptions will impact upon the carrying amount of employment benefit obligations.

(b) Useful lives of depreciable assets:

Management reviews the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting. As at March 31, 2019 management assessed that the useful
lives represent the expected utility of the assets to the Company. Further, there is no significant change in the useful lives as compared to
previous year.

(c) Estimation of provision for warranty:

These estimates are established using technical information on the nature and cost of warranty claims, as per management estimates
regarding possible future incidences based on type of products and its failure expcetations. The timing of outflows will vary as and when
warranty claim will arise, being liable up to three years.

Management, also estimates regarding possible future outflow on servicing the customers for any corrective action in respect. of product
failure which is generally expected to be settled within a period upto 3 years, and the same has been carried forward into future at term
borrowing effective interest rate, currently applicable.

The assumptions made in relation to the current period are consistent with those in the prior year, if any. Factors that could impact the
estimated claim information include the success of the Company’s productivity and quality initiatives.

{d) Provision for slow moving and ohsolete items in Inventory Valuation:
Inventaries are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Write-down of inventories are calculated based on an an
foreseeable changes in demand, technology or market conditions to determine Obsolescence.
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INDUTCH COMPOSITES TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
MNotes to the financial statements

Intangible Assets

(Amount in Rs.)

" Computer

Particulars /Assets S Total
GROSS BLOCK
At 31st March 2018 12,55,609 12,55,609
Additions 19,05,559 19,05,559
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At 31st March 2019 31,61,168 31,61,168
Additions 56,52,852 56,52,852
Deduction/Adjustments, -
At 31st March 2020 88,14,020 88,14,020
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 31st March 2018 11,46,583 11,46,583
Charge for the year 1,91,163 1,91,163
Deduction/Adjustments - -
At 31st March 2019 13,37,746 13,37,746
Charge for the year 12,61,914 12,61,914
Deduction/Adjustments 2
At 31st March 2020 25,99,660 25,99,660
Net Block
At 31st March, 2018 1,09,026 1,09,026
At 31st March 2019 18,23,422 18,23,422
At 31st March 2020 62,14,360 62,14,360

1 The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of its Intangible assets recognised as of
April 1, 2016 (transition date) measured as per the Previous GAAP and used that carrying value as its

deemed cost as on the transition date as per Para D7AA of Ind AS 101,
2 The aggregate amortisation charge for the year has been included under depreciation and
amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes to Accounts

Deposits {Amount in Rs.)
ol 4 As at Asat
e 315t March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2018
Unsecured, considerad good
Depaosits 4,82.76,778 3,13,30,407
Total 4,82,76,778 3,13,30,407

1) Depaosits are largely in relation to-public utilities and Lease Aggrements,
7) However, The company has not taken exhustive search for information to assess significant increase in the credit risk since

initial recognition.

Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (Amount in Rs.)
Particiitars As at As at
31st March, 2020 | 3i1st March, 2019
Deferred Tax Assets 43,79,147 43,79,147
Deferred Tax Liabilities (1,09,40,335) -
Total (65,61,188) 43,79,147
For the Financial Year 2019-20: {Amount in Rs.}
Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Other | Closing Balance
Statement of Profit | Comprehensive
and Loss Income
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Difference of Deprecialtion as per Books and Income Tax™* 49,56,629 {1,06,37,980) - (56,81,351)
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis (21,913} - {3,02,355} (3,24,268
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 49,34,716 (1,06,37,9580) (3,02,355) {60,05,619)
eferred tax liability on account of:
Expenses claim for Tax on Payment Basis 5,55,569 - - 5,55,569
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities {B) 5,55,56% - - 5,55,569
Met Deferred Tax (A-B) 43,79,147 {1,06,37,980) (3,02,355) {65,61,188)
* Net off Depreciation on leased asset
For the Financial Year 2018-1%: {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Opening Balance Recognized in Recognized in Other| Closing Balance
Statement of Profit | Comprehensive
and Loss Income
Deferred tax asset on account of:
Difference of Deprecialtion as per Books and Income Tax 28,50,966 21,05,663 - 49,56,629
Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis - = {21,913) (21,913)
Total Deferred Tax Assets (A) 28,50,966 21,05,663 {21,913) 49,34,716
Deferred tax liability on account of:
Expenses claim for Tax on Payment Basis 5,55,569 - 5,55,569
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (B) 5,55,569 - - 5,55,569
| Net Deferred Tax {A-B} 22,95,397 21,05,663 (21,913) 43,79,147
Other Non-Current Assets {Amountin Rs.)
As at As at
B 31t March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Non Current Investments - -
Advarnice for Capex 45,25,538 7,86,91,333
Income Tax Refunds/Demands Receivables. 41,33,21% 41,33,219
VAT/GST Recoverable® 2,84,83,259 1,24,65,418
Retention with Customer 13,20,30,265 6,05,85,480
Prepayments - Leasehold Land {refer note 194} 2l S
Total 16,91,72,281 15,58,75,450
* Includes overdue of Rs.10.08 Lakns pertaining to Refund of Export IGST,
Inventories {Amount in Rs.}
r Particulars At Anat
31st March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2019
Raw Materials £,95,86,687 4,62,85,762
Work in Process 3,69,42,854 27,089,522
Finished Goads (Incl. Plug and Moulds) 17,80,.29,876 9,00,39,883
Store and spares - -
Total 28,45,59,417 14,50,35,167

(i) For details of Inventories given as security 1o lenders, refer Note Mo, 25.
{ii) The cost of inventaries recognised as an expense i< disclosed in Notes 32, 33 and 37 in the Statement of Praofit and Loss.
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{Amount in Rs.)

12 Investments
2 Asat Asat
Baimailars 31¢t March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Investment in Mutual Funds (Unquoted): \
DSP Liquidity fund - Regular plan -Growth 1,84,67,722 1,09.867
| 1,84,67,722 1,09,867
1) The above Mutual Furds are valued at the value detlared by the AMC.
13 Trade receivables {AmountinRs.)
Particulars i Aast
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
-Unsecured, Considered good 14,41,43.507 16,06,76,215
-Unsecured, Considered doubtful + u
Less: Impairment for doubtful trade receivables * z
Total 14,41,43,507 16,06,76,215
(i) Generally, the Company enters into long-term sales arrangement with its customers, The average credit period is around 4560

days.

(i) At 31st Mar, 2020, the Company had 3 customers having outstanding more than 5% of total trade receivables that accounted
for approximately 91.14%.0f receivables outstanding.

{iii} During Previous Year Rs.1,05,46,117/- receivables have been derecognised since there is no reasonable expection of
measurability in terms of its probability of the amount and timing or receivability. The same are shown as exceptional items.

{iv) It includes Balances which are outstanding for more than 3 year of Rs.17,58,794.00

(vi) Age of receivables: (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Within the credit period
Upto B months past due 13,13,79,475 13,74,21,061
Mare than & months past due 1,27,64,032 2,32,55,154
Total 14,41,43,507 16,06,76,215
14 Cash and Cash Equivalents (Amount in Rs.}
Particulars ) Asat Lo
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Balances with banks
In Current Accounts 1,87,960 1,23,20,098
Fixed Deposit - £,00,00,000
Cash on hand 72,720 74,594
Total 2,60,680 7,23,94,693
15 Other Bank Balances {Amount in Rs.}
Particulars Bt Az
31st March, 2020 | 3ist March, 2019
Balances with banks
Depasit with bank held as margin money against Bank guarantee & LC 30,50,000 1,27.80,050
Total 30,50,000 1,27,80,050
16 Current Loans {&mount in Rs.}
- As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Unsegured, considered good
Advance to Employees 11,00,464 5.71,680
Deposits 62,53,235 39,87,378
Other receivables - -
Total 73,53,699 45,559,058
17 Other Current Financial Assets’ (Amount in Rs.)
particulars Ao Riar
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018
Unsecured, considered good
Interest receivable 24,281 3,777,495
Total 24,281 3,77,495
18 Current Tax Assets (Net) (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018
Current Tax Assets
Advance tax / TDS {Net of Provision) 2,08,77,069 .
Total 2,09,77,069 -
{i|Presently Company is continuing with the current tax rate regime.
)
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19 Other Current Assets (Amount in Rs.)

; As at As at
P 315t March, 2020 | 31stMorch, 2019
Unsecured, considered good
Balance with Gavernment Authorities = -
Prepaid Expenses 56,72,630 31,359,309
Advance to Vendors 37,88,279 26,04 308
Total 94,60,909 57,43,618
20 Equity Share Capital (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars et ki
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Authorised, Share capitai
50.00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/-each 5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed & fully paid share capital

42,15,494 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 4,21,54,940 4,71,54,940
Total 4,21,54,940 4,21,54,940
(i} A reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of reporting period is as under:

Particulars No. of Shares Share Capital (in Rs.)
As at 1st April, 2018 29,97,684 2,99,76,840
Additions/(Reductions) 12,17,810 1,21,78,100
Asat 31st March, 2018 432,15,494 4,21,54,940
As at 1st April, 2019 42,15,494 4,21,54,940
Additions/(Reductians) - -
As at 31st March,2020 42,15,494 4,21,54.940J

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:

£or all matters submitted ta vote in a shareholders meeting of the Company, every holder of an equity share as reflected in the
records of the Campany on the date of the shareholders meeting shall have one vote in respect of each share held, Any dividend
declared by the company shall be paid to each holder of Equity shares in proportion to the nurmber of shares held to total equity
shares outstanding as on that date, In the event of liquidation of the Company all preferential amounts if any shail be discharged
by the Company. The remaining assets of the Company shall be distributed to the holders of equity shares in proportion tothe
nuriber of shares held to the total equity shares outstanding as on that date,

{iii) Details of shares held by holding company are classified as under:

Particulars No. of shares Extent of Holding
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd
As at 315t March, 2020 2866536 ‘68.00%
{iv) Details of shareholders holding more thar 5% shares in the Company are as under:-
Particulars No. of shares Extent of Holdin,
Binayak Rath 674479 16%
Sathinarayanah Palaniappan 574479 16%
Munijal Auto Industries Ltd. 2866536 68%

{v) Pursuant to the board resolution of june, 2018 , the company has issued 12,17,810 Right shares of face value Rs. 10to Munijal
Auto Industries Limited and securities Premium of Rs.193 642/- totalling Rs. 203.644 per share aggregating to Rs.24,80,00,000/-
During Juns 2018, First Call was made of Rs.7.5 pershare towards the Face value and Rs, 120 per share as securities premivm
totalling Rs.127.5/- per share aggregating to Rs. 15,52,70,775/~

falance final call of Rs. 2.5 towards face value and Rs. 73.644 per share as securities premium totalling to #s.9,27,28,825/- called
upin March, 2018.

Expenses relating to such actions have been written off during the year to the profit and loss account.

{vi) Of the Equity shares held by the two WTD, equally totalling 26.10% of the current Equity capital have been pledged tothe
hank as security towards term foan in march,2019.

{During the year physical equity shares of the company converted in to Dmate format with COSL Venture Limited, they have
allated new ISIN NoINEOBYBO101E for total Equity shares 82,15,494 held in physical format)

21 Other Equity {Amount in Rs.)
: Asat As at
Pei e 315t March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018
Capital Reserve - -
General Reservas 25,12,65,272 25,12,65,272
Retained Earnings 6,82,56,809 7,82,11,794
Total 31,95,22,081 32,94,77,066
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{i) Particulars relating to Other Equity: {Amount in Rs.)
As at Asat

fer ety 315t March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Capital Reserve

Opening Balance - -

Add: Movements - -

Closing Balance (A) = =

Securities Premiun

Openirig Balance 25,12,65,272 1,54,43,672

Addition during the year = 23,58,21,600

Closing Balance (B) 25,12,65,272 25,12,65,272

Retained Earnings

Opening Balance 7,82,11,792 3,35,18,443

Add: Net profit after tax transferred from Statement of Profit {1,08,15,531) 4,46,36,494

& Loss

Add: Other Comprehensive income arising from re- 8,60,547 56,855

measurement of defined benefit abligation net of income tax

Less: Final Dividend for year 2018-19 paid - -

Less: Tax on Final Dividend = 5

Closing Balance ( €) 6,82,56,809 7,82,11,792

Total (A+B+C) 31,95,22,081 32,94,77,063

Borrowings (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars A e ey

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Secured

Term Loans

From Banks & Others 25,33,77,720 13,71,98,169

Interest Accrued but not Paid - -

UnSecured

Finance Lease = =

Total 25,33,77,720 13,71,98,169

{i) Nature of security and terms of repayment for lang term secured borrowings including current maturities: These loans are secured by

Hypothication of plant and Machinery, Immovable Properties ( Having first charge), Personal Guarentee of Directors and pledge of Equity Shares of

twio WTD including their personal House Properties too .
Particulars

Terms of Repayment
During ther year term loan -| was pay off fully.

Term loan - | A/C N0.35431662692
Term loan -1l A/C Na.38356896330 outstanding RS. 27,86,03,422 /-

Repayahite in 26 Quarterly installments of varing &mounts,
Repayments will commence from 31.12.2020.

Interest rate on the above term loans revised to 11.15% P.A. in last Quarter

Other Financial liabilities {Amount in Rs,}
As at As at
Particulars
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
UnSecured
Lease Liability 47,04,81.063 1,18,57.673
Total 47,04,81,063 1,18,57,673
(i} Refer note no 48
Long-term provisions {(Amount in Rs.)
Asat As at
Particulars )
3ist March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Provision for employee benefits {For details refer note no: 41)
Gratuity 1,16,75,028 68,33,089
Leave Encashment 63,61,433 36,10,300
Provision for warranties 1,17,16,253 42,42,970
Total 2,97,52,714 1,46,86,368

(i} Movement in warranties Provision: {Amount in Rs.}

For the Year ended | For the Year ended

Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Opening balance 47,34,346 .

Additions during the year 67,17,731 45,43, 466 ]
Amount utilised during the year = =

Provision reversed during the year = -

Unwinding of discount an provisions 8,06,551 1,90,880

Closing balance 1,22,58,628 47,34,346

Long-term Provisions 1,17,16,251 42,42,970

Shiort-term Prowvisions 542,377 4,91,377

The provision for warranty claims represents the present value as best estimate of the future economic benefits that will be
required under the Compary's obligations for warranties. The estimate has baen made on the basis of historical warranty trends

and may vary as a result of new materials, altered manufacturing processes or other events affecting preduct quality.
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Borrowings

(Amounit in As.)

Particulars i s
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Secured
Loans repayable on demand from banks & Others 5,91,15,312 -
Total 5,91,15,312 -

{i) These loans are secured by a first charge on inventories, receivables and all other current assets of the Company, Hypothication

of plant and Machinery, Immovable Properties, Personal Guarentes of Directors ard pledge of Equity Shares of two WTD.

Trade Payables (Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Asat st
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Trade Payables 22,17,10,206 15,66,91,434
Total 22,17,10,206 15,66,91,434

(i} Payment towards trade payables is made as per the terms and conditions of the contract / purchase orders. The average credit

periodis 45-90 days.
(i) Includes balance of Payables outstanding for more than 3 years of Rs. 21,82,415.00

(iii) The amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006" has been determined to the extent such parties have not been identified on the basis of information available with the

Company.
Trade payables -Total outstanding dues of Micro & Small enterprises* . A
) 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
(2) Amount remaining unpaid but not due as at year end 82,14,185 20,11,208
Amount remalning unpaid / overdue as st year end 2,76,02,031 20,96,312
Tatal 3,58,16,216 41,07,520
(b} Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during the year
(¢} Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment {which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year] but without adding the
interest specified under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006
{d] Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end
{e} Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise
(i} No interest is provided or paid towards overdues,
*MSME vendor classification is based on the confirmation received from Vendaors.
Other Financial Liabilities {Amount in Rs,)
Particulars A SRR
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Current maturities of long term debt 2,02,88,000 18,48,000
Interest accrued on borrowings and not due 21,20,418 =
Unclaimeag Dividends (Refer note below) - -
Security Deposits = =
Expenses payable 49,66,482 2;53,971
Payable to Employees = -
Lease Liability 8,39,37,586. 42,46,881
Total 11,13,12,487 63,48,852
Other Current liabilities (Amount in Rs.)
As at As at
PRt 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Lizhility for statutory payments 71,314,704 1,42,17,029
Other Payables 26,86,273 =
Payable to Employees 2,4551,657 1.67,48,995
Provision for Tax {Net) - 6,20,268
Payable for Capital Goods 51,26,090 -
Advance Received from Customers: 1,28,13,907 -
Total 5,22,92,931 3,15,86,292
Provisions {Amount in Rs.}
Particulars s i at
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2018
Provision for employee benefits (For details refer note no: 41)
Gratuity 2,19,608 1,28,531
Leave Encashment 2,16,095 1,30,322
ESIC 1,065,861 1,63,782
PF 32,77,052 26,36,723
Professional Tax 13,22,172 16,43,479
Provision for Tax i =
Provision for Expenses 62,77,683 10,84,609
Provision for warranties (Refer note no. 22 for details) 542,377 4,91,377
Total 1,19,61,748 62,78,823
(i} Presently Comipany is continuing with the current tax rate regime, (""‘
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Revenue from Operations (Amountin Rs.}

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

Sale of Products / Services =

Sale of Products / Services 94,46,47,989 71,90,38,132

Other Operating Revenue z

Sale of scrap 292,224 3,22,905

Sales -Export * 1,45,79,625 3,55,77,664

Total 95,95,19,838 75,49,38,701

*Met of returns of Rs.115 Lakhs (P.Y. Nil).

Other Income {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars 3ist March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost -
Deposit with bank and others 10,589,856 11,08,344
Dividend Income i -
Dividend received on investments carried 3t fair value - =
through Prafit or Loss
Cash Discount 5 -
Net Profit on sale of Current Investments 13,57,855 1,09,867
Net gain on investments carried at fair value through Profit G -
or Loss
Other non-operating income: = =
‘Sundry balances written back (net) = 2
Miscellaneous Income 32,41,560 23,58,989
Total 56,89,271 34,77,200
Cost of materials consumed {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Cost of materials consumed 30,50,25,812 23,48,36,596
Total 30,50,25,812 23,48,36,596
Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and work-in-progress {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2018
Opening stock:
Firnished goods 9,00,35,883 4,06,83,084
Work-in-progress 87,09,522 -
Total {A) 9,87,49,405 4,06,83,084
Closing stock:
Finished goods * 8,44,17 009 9,00,35,883
Waork-in-prograss # 13,05,55,721 87,099,522
Total (B) 21,49,72,730 9,87,49,405
Total(A-B) (11,62,23,325) (5,80,66,321)
* Includes rectification material held at customer location Rs,224 Lakhs (PY Nif).
# Includes service stock Rs. 786 Lakhs { PY Rs.255Lakhs)
Employee Benefits Exp {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Salaries and wages 28,67,55110 18,68,80,263
Contribution to provident and other funds 1,87,39,581 1,13,96,135
Staff welfare expenses 50,02,452 35,02,404
Total 31,04,97,143 20,17,78,801
Finance Costs {Amaunt in Rs.}
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Interest on: ¥
Borrowings from banks 1,12,80,683 13,71,651
Others 5,00,727 41,83,167
Other costs 37,858,149 13,23,768
Interest for Finance Lease 3,74,78,457 23,61,561
Unwinding of giscount an provisions 8,06,551 1,907,880
Total 5,38,54,566 94,31,027
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36 Depreciation and amortization expense {Amount in Rs.}
For the year ended | Forthe year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 11,66,20,928 1,54,56,533
Amortisation of intangible assets 12,61,914 1,91,163
Total 11,78,82,842 1,56,47,696
37 Other Exp {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 3ist March, 2019
Consumption of Stores & Spares, Tools - 5
Power and fuel 11,14,43,983 7,47,08,340
Freight Charges 91,16,194 72,271,972
Repairs and Maintenance . = =
Repairs to Buildings 34,07,813 16,77,028
Repairs to Machinery 10,27,472 £,15,684
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 17.05,101 32,46,577
Rent 24,20,710 6,21,06,510
Wages to Contractors 1,98,95,097 3,50,36,235
Professional Charges 1,34,14.372 55,82,259
Insurance Premium 36,61,315 16,68,289
Payment to Auditors 702,500 464,016
Canteen Expenses 1,90,21,883 1,57.44,219
Rates and Taxes excluding taxes on income 24,73,817 22,54,224
Viehicle Hiring & Maintenance Expense 1,85,51,248 1,10,44,695
Warranty Expenses 67,17,732 45,43, 467
Rectification Material Return 2,33,45,211 -
Crane Hiring Charges 83,62,576 48,69,139
Scrap Removal Expense 74,81,082 88,24,975
Tour & Travelling Expenses 1,09,50,527 78,25,968
Security Services 57,890,747 41,81,033
Eabrication Expenses 19,61,758 51,48,552
Claaring and Forwarding Charges 24,25122 43,611,644
Unwinding Rent Expenses 32.30,783 19,95,328
Factory Exps. 29,42,086 70,71,046
Site Exps. 13,20,904 13,45,872
Miscellaneous Expenses® 95,35,665 87,40,082
Total 29,09,05,686 28,02,84,153

* None of the item individually sccounts for more than Rs.10,00,000 or 1% of revenue whichever is higher.

{i) Payment to auditors has been classified below:

(Amount in Rs.)

For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 41st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
For Audit fees 5,000,000 2,50,000
For Tax Audit 1,00,000 75,000
For Other Services 4,05,000 3,41,000
For out of pocket expenses E -
Total 10,05,000 6,66,000
38 Exceptional ltem {Amount in Rs._]|
piicelars For the \,r_ear ended | Forthe .year ended
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Exceptional ltem 32,55,676 1,05,46,117
TOTAL 32,55,676 1,05,46,117

Exceptional items are those which are considerad for separate disclasure in the financial statements considering their size, nature

or incidence. Such items included with in Profit and loss are as under:

- During the year there has been a fraud on company towards payment to a
has been followed up with banker and case has been filed with cybercell vadodara.

_During the year receivables of Nil and Previous year Rs.1,05,46,117 have been written off as the company doesn’t have
reasonable expectation of measurability, in terms of its probability of the amount and the timing or receivability. The Company
has filed for a claim in NCLT ahemdabad and as per the order dated 03.12.2019 an amount of Rs.90,45,000 reflected as admissible

Import creditor amounting to Rs. 32,55,676 the same

claim.
39 Tax Expense {Amount in Rs.)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Current tax in relation to:
Current years - 2.14,27.000
Earlier years 1,388,259 =
Deferred Tax
In respect of current year 1,06,37,980 (21.05,663}
Unizsed Tax Credits =
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 1,08,26,239 1,93,21,337
(i) Company is continuing with the current tax rate regime. -
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{i) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

(Amount in Rs.}

Forthe year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2019
Profit before Tax & OC! 11,73.610 6,40,36,559
Income tax expense calculated at 26% / 27.82% 3,749,554 1,78,14,982
Tax effects of amaunts which are not deductible/{taxable} in
Expenses not allowed in Incorme Tax 4,34,95,721 36,18,545
Reversal of Provision of diminution of investments
Allowable Expenses / Non Taxable Income {4,30,28,7939) (29,40,457)
Deduction of Section 80IC
Exceptional ltems (8,46,476) 29,33,930
Tax adjustment of earlier years 1,88,259 -
Deffered Tax 1,06,37,980 (21,05,663)
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation 4
Tax Expenses 1,08,26,239 1,93,21,337
Earnings per share
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019
Profit after tax for the year attributable ta equity shareholders {1,08,15,531) 4,46,36,494
'No. of Equity Shares 42,15,494 42,15,494
Weighted average number of eguity shares 36,82,702 36,82,702
Basic earnings per eguity share (2.57} 10,59
Diluted earnings per eguity share (2.57) 10.59
Face Walue per equity share 10.00 10.00
Contingent Liabilities and G it ts {to the extent not provided for) (Amount in Rs.)
Pastiaials For the year ended | For the year ended
I1st March, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2013
{A) Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt under the custom law 4,75,40,711 28743338
Bank Gurrantee 2,97,65,658 2,24 44,646
Income Tax 44,78,021 44,78,021
(B) Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 2,55,00,000 36,71,00,000
provided for (Met of Advaiices)
The above contingent liabilities are against the proceedings pending with Income Tax Department for TDS Penalties and

Assessments.

The abave commitments are for capital contracts to be executed for the upcoming plant.

Leases

The Company has obtained land and certain premises for its business operations (inc
operating lease or leave and license agreements. These are ganerally not non-tanceliable and period

leave and licence and are renewable by mutual consent an mutually agreeable terms. The Company has gi

luding furniture and fittings, therein as applicable) under
5 range between 12 months and 10 years under

ven refundable interest free security

deposits in accordance with the agreed terms. These refundable security deposits have been valued at amartised cost under relevant Ind AS.
Short term lease and small value lease payments are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under “Rent” in Note 37,

Employee Benefits
{a) Defined Contribution Plans:

Contributions to defined contribution plan are recognised as expenses when contributions become dueg.
The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense recognised in relation to these
schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by the Company al rates specified by the rules of those plans. The only
amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior months contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the

reporting period
The major defined contribution plans operated by the Company are as below:
{i) Provident fund and Pension:

In accordance with the Employes’s Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive
benefits in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which toth employees and the Company make monthly contributions at.a

specified percentage of the covered employees’ salary.

The contributions, as specified under the law, are made to the provident funid set up as an irrevocable trust by the Company, post contribution of
employee pension scheme.

amount specified under the law to Employee Provident Fund Organisation on account of

The total expenses recognised in the Statemient of Prafit and Loss during the period are s under;

{Amount in Rs.}

Particulars 31.03.2020
Employer's contribution to Provident and other Funds 1,72,22,265
Total 1,72,22,265
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{b) Defined Benefit Plan:

{i} Gratuity:

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the
employment on completion of five years or death while in employment. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service
and salary at the time of retirement/termination age. The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present valus of the defined
benefit obligation were carried out as at 31st March, 2019 by a member firm of the Institute of Actuaries of India. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method,

The company has not created any fund against the Gratuity and Leave Encashment Liability pending on

The company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. The plan provides for a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or on termination of emplayment of an amount equivalent to 15 days
salary payable for each completed year of service Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The liability for gratuity as at the year-
end Is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation

This plan typically expase the Company to actuarial risks such a5 Non Funding risk, longevity risk and salary risk

{1} Non Funding Risk:

The present value of the defined bensfit plan hability 15 caleulated using a discount rate determined by reference to the market yields an
government bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. Since the same has not been funded the company carries the risk relating to fluctuation in market
Interest rates and return the company enjoys on unfunded portion

(1) Longevity Risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the miortality of plan participants both during
and after their employment Anincrease in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

{IV) Salary Risk:
The present value of the defined benefit plan hability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants As such, an increase in the
salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability,

GRATUITY
Present Value of Benefit Obligations
- changes over the valuation period

Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 1-4-2019 68,61,620 50,97,313
Past Service cost - -
Current Service cost 56,21,044 2,225,725
Interest cost 473,330 382,493
Benefits paid

Actuarial losses {gains) arising from change in financial

assumptions 13,98,684

Actuarial losses (gains} arising from change in demographic
assumptions
Actuarial losses (gains) drising from experience adjustments {25,60,099} (753,911)

Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 31-3-2020 1,18 94 639 6,961,620

Bifurcation of Present Value of Benefit Obligation

Currenit - Amount due within one year 2,198,608 128,531
Mon-Current - Amount due after ane year 1,16,75,031 £8,33,089
Total 1,18,94,639 6,961,620

Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years

Yearl 2,319,608 128,531
Year 2 391227 234,800
Year 3 377,730 243,763
Year 4 3,64,698 235,353
Year§ 4,52,206 232,420
Year 6 to Year 10 60,02, 496 8,306,804
Sensitivity Analysis

- Effects of Key Assumptions on Defined Benefit Obligations

Discount Rate - 1 percent increase 1,03,56,711 63,09,566
Discount Rate -1 percent decrease 1,38,18,145 77,35.871
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent increase 1,37.54,240 7,733,522
Salary Escalation Rate - 1 percent decrease 1,03,46,322 6,299,955
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent intrease 1,18,59,689 6,982,504
Withdrawal Bate - 1 percent decrease 1,19,36,356 6,938,753
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LEAVE
Present Value of Benefit Obligations
- changes over the valuation period
Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 1-4-2019
Currant Service cost
Past Service cost
Interest cost
Benefits paid
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from change in financial
assumptions
Actuarial losses {gains) arising from change in
demographic assumptions
Actuarial losses (gains) ansing from experience
adjustments
Present Value of Benefit Obligation on 31-3-2020
Bifurcation of Present Value of Benefit Obligation
Lurrent - Amount due within one year
Non-Current - Amicunt due after ane year
Total

Expected Benefit Payments in Future Years
Year 1

Year 2

Year3

Year 4

Year 5

Year6to Year 10

Sensitivity Analysis

- Effects of Key Assumptions on Defined Benefit Obligations

Discount Rate - 1 percent increase
Discount Rate - 1 percent decrease

Salary Escalation Rate -1 percent increase
Salary Escalation Rate- 1 percent decrease
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent increase
Withdrawal Rate - 1 percent decrease

Segment Reporting

38,18,238
25;90,741
0
2,539,640

(15,37,268)
B6,67,135

2,16,095
64,51 040
66,67,135

2,16,085
216,328
2,08,768
2,01,566
249,684
1599 852

57,71,687
77,79,398
77,65,624
57,65,618
66,48,082
66,89,767

7,15,688
23,72,258
Q

55,108

6,75,144
38,18,238

1,30,322
36,287,916
38,18,238

1,383,322
144,100
1,35,882
131,194
1,33.260
10,22,666

3348354
44.02,072
44,00,262
33,41,5%0
3840767
37,93.388

The Company's operations falls under single segment namely "Manufacturing of Auto Components’ The Board of Directors of the
Company evaluates the Company's performance, allocate resources based on the analysis of the various performance indicator of
the Company as a single unit. Therefore, there is no reportable segment for the Company as per the requirement of IND AS 108

“Operating Segments”
{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Asat Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Revenue From:
Outside India 1,45,79.625 3,55,77,664
In India 94,49,40,213 71,93,61,037
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45 Related Party Disclousers

Name of related parties-and description of their relationships are as under:

{A) Holding Company:
Munjal Auto industries Ltd
(B} Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives:

Since 72 052018

Mr Binayak Rath Director Since 22 .02 2010
Mr.P L Sathinarayan Director Since 22.02.2010
Mr Sudhir Kumar Munjal Director Since 22.05.2018
Mr Anu) Munjal Director Since 22.05.2018

Mr.Debdut Mishra
Mr. Debasis Gupta

Chief Executie Officer
Chief Executie Officer

{C) Enterprise in which directors and their relatives are directars:

Since 12.05:2017
Since 23.05 2019

The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in ordinary course of business during the year:

{Amount in Rs.)
Enterprise inwhich | Key Managerial
|Nature of Transaction Holding Coi directors and their personnel
S Ry relatives are Tosl
diractors
Remuneration paid - - 1,39,96,312 1,39,96,312
% {1,96,70.000})|  (1,96,70,000)
Mr Binayak Rath Z = 54,00,000 54,00,000
= 5 (82,75,000) {82,75,000)
Mr. P L Sathinarayan 2 T 54,00,000 54,00,000
= - {82,75,000} {82,75,000)
Mr. Debdut Mishra = 5 31,96,312 31,96,312
= > (31,20,000) {31,70,000)
Mr: Debasis Gupta = = 9,96,224 9.96,224
Loans & Advances = = z 2
(22,95,22 BR&) {7.32,35,642)| {30,27,58,528)
Mr.Binayak Rath - Balance / taken - - . -
= = {6,95,000) 16,95,000)
Mr Binayak Rath - Repaid = - - -
- # = 112,45,000) {12,43,000)
Miraj Ratar Blades Tech. Pyt Ltd -Balance/ taken - - - -
£ 3 15,56,313) {15,56,313)
Mr. Sudhir Munjal - Balance / taken - = - -
: % = {3,00,00,059) {3,00,00,058)
Mr. Sudhir Munjal - Repaid . - -
= T (3,00,00,055) {3,00,00,059)
Murvari BV -Repaid Including Interest z = =
{1,81,42,064) - = 3
Munjal Aute Industries Ltd - Balance / taken — . z =
{10,50,00,000) {10,50,00.000)
tunjal Auto Industries Ltd - Repaid — - —
110,50,00,000) - 5 {10,50,00,000]
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd - Balance Interest . . = .
(13,80,822) - = (13,80,822)
Goods and services = 3,90,00,003 = 3,80,00,003
- (4,34,54 665) 3 (4,34,94 665}
Miraj Rotor Blades Tech. Byt Ltd ( Purchase) - . —
- (3,88,73,126) = {3.88,73,116}
Miraj Rotor Blades Tech Pvt Ltd -{ Sales) - — - -
¥ (46,21,538) 146,21,539]
Mr. Debasis Gupta - 300,000 - 43,00,000
Munjal Auto Industries Ltd - Rent : 2750008 . 3,75,00,003

Amounts in brackets indicote previous vear figures

Related party: The Company has paid interast to the Holding company, for its various demand Ipans, in tonsonance with the relevant provisions of
The Companies Act 2013, which specifies the minimum rate of interest aligned to Government securities of matching profile The said demand loans
were received pending final call on Rights share issue, which was subseribed by the Holding Company, since the-future business plan was under
further deliberation and till such plans were re- discussed and approved, the amaunt were received from Directors and Halding comparny

All other such loans from Directors and Related parties are in nature of demand loans and are considered to have been received and valued - at fair

value and hence no interest is considered,

The campany has entered into 2 fong term Lease arrangentent with Holding company for a period of 10 years, with Rentals due to start in next

financial year.

{Amount in Rs.}

Balance as at:
Particulars AsHE . ! Asat
31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Remuneration payable: 2,16,355 7.B3421
Mr Binayak Rath 1,44,500 | 5,72,332
Mr.P L Sathinarayan 71,859 | 2,11,088
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46 Balances of trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and loans are subject to the confirmation/reconciliation. Adjustments if any, will
be accounted for on confirmation/reconcifiation of the same, which will not have matenal impact

47 Financial Instrument Disclosure:
(a) Capital Management;
The Company's capital management is intended to create valus for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term goals of the
Company
The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan coupled with long term and short term strategic
Investment and expansion plans. The funding needs are met through equity, cash generated from ‘operations, long term and short term bank
borrowings
The Company monitars the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the
Company
Net debt includes interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents, ather bank balances (including earmarked balances) and current

Investments
The table below summarises the capital, net debt and net debt to equity ratia of the Company {Amount in Rs.)
Particulars Agat Asgt
31stMarch, 2020 | 31stMarch, 2019
Equity share capital 4,21,54,940 4,21,54,940
Other Equity 31,95.22,081 32,94,77,066
Total Equity (A) 36,16,77,021 37,16,32,006
Non-current borrowings 25,33,77,720 13,71,98,189
Short term borrowings 5,91,15,312 -
Current maturities of long term borrowings 2,02,88,000 18,48,000
Gross Debt (B) 33,27,81,032 13,90,46,169
Total Capital {A+B) 59,44,58,054 51,06,78,174
Gross Debt as above 33,27,81,032 13,90,46,169
Less: Current investments 1,8467,722 109,867
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 2.60,680 7.23,94 693
Less: Other balances with bank (including earmarked balances) 36,50,000 1,27,80.050
Net Debt (C) 31,10,02,630 5,37,61,559
Net debt to equity 0.85 0.14

Net debt to equity as at 31st March, 2020 and 31st March, 2019 has been computed based on average equity

{b) Disclosures:

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Caompany and provides additional infarmation on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments

The details of sigrificant accounting policies, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on
which income and expenses are recagnised in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity Instrument are
disclosed in Note dixil), faii) and (xiv)

(i} Financial assets and liabilities:

The following tables presents each category of financial assets and liabilities as at 3%st- March, 2020, and 31st March, 2019

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2020 | 31st March, 2019

\. Financial Assets;
Measured at fair value through profit or loss {FyTeL)
(&) Investments in mutual funds: 1,84,67,722 1,09,867
Measured at amortised cost
Trade and other receivables 14,41,43,507 16,06,76,215
Cash and cash equivalents 2,60,680 7,23,94 693
Other bank balances 30,50,000 1,27,80.,050
Loans 5,56,30.477 3,58,89,465
Other financial assets 24,281 3,77495
Total 22,15,76,667 28,22,27,785
Il. Financial Liabilities:
Measured at amortised cost
Larig term borrowings 25,33,77,720 13,71,98,169
Short term borrowings 5,91,15,312 -
Trade payables 22,17,10,206 =
Other financial liabilities 11,13,12,487 63,48, 852
Total 64,55,15,726 14,35,47,021

(i) Fair value measurement:
This note provides infarmation about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assats and lisbilities

Fair value measurements under Ind AS are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety;

* Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or ligbilities that the company can access at
measurement date; &

® Level 7 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly, and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservabie inputs forthe valuation of assets/liabilities.
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Fair value of the Company’s financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Following table gives information about how the fair values of the Company's financial assets are determined: {Amount in Rs.)
Fibsncial assels Fair value as at Fair value
31st March, 2020 | 3ist March, 2019 hierarchy
Investment in mutual funds 1.84,67,722 1,09.867 Level 1

Valuation technique and key input: MAV declared by respective Asset Management Companies

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required):

Management considers that the carrying amourits of financial assets and financial fiabilities recognized in the financial statements except fair value
of investments in mutual funds approximate their fair values.

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 for the years ended 31st March, 2020 and 315t March, 2019

{iii} Finaneial risk management objectives:

White ensuring liquidity is sufficient to meet Company's operational requirements, also monitors and manages key financial risks relating to the

aperations of the Company by analysing expasures by degree and magnitude of risks These risks include market risk {Including currency risk and
price risk), credit sk and liquidity risk

Market risk:

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices- such as forsign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices- will affect the Company's
income ar the value of its holdings of financial instrument. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters while optimising the return

Currency Risk:

The Company's expasure to currency risk relates primarily to the Company's operating activities including anticipated sales & purchase and
borrowings where the transactions are denominated in a currency other than the Company's functional currency.

The Company has notentered into ary forward foreign exchange contracts during the reporting period

Credit risk management:

Credit nisk refers to the nsk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Comparly The Company
has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company's
exposure and wherever appropriate; the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuausly monitared and spread amongst various counterparties.
Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty hmits that are reviewed and approved by the management of the Company. Finangial instruments that
are subject to concentrations of credit risk, principally consist of balance with banks, investments in debt instruments/ bonds, trade recaivables and
lpans and advances. None of the financial instruments of the Company result in material concentrations of credit risks

Balances with banks were not past due or impaired as at the year end In other financial assets that are not past dues and not impaired, there were
no indication of default in repayment as at the year end

Interest rate risk management:
The Company's mam interest rate risk arises from the |ong termy borrowings with fixed rates. The Company's fixed rates borrowings are carried at
amartised cost.

Liquidity risk management:
The Company manages iguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents and availability of funding through an adeguate amount of

committed credit facilities to meet the obligations when due. Management monitors rolling forecasts of biquidity position and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flaws In addition, liquidity management also involves projecting cash flows considering level of liguid

assets necessary to meet obligations by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets & liabilities and monitoring balance sheet liguidity ratios,

The following tables detail the Camipany’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial lisbilities with agreed repayment periods
The information ntluded in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest dateon
which the Company tan be reguired to pay The tables include both interest and principal cash flows The contractual maturity is based on the
earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay

{Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 1 month -1 year 1 year —3 years Mme_man 5
years

As at 31st March, 2020
Long term borrowings = 8.00.00,000 17,33,77.720
Short term barrowings 5.91,15,312 - -
Trade payables 22,17,10,208 - -
Other financal lisbilities 11,13,12,487 20,49,65,625 26,55,15.438
Total 39,21,38,006 28,49,65,625 43,88,93,158
As at 31st March, 2019
Leng term borrowings 3 6,00,00,000 7,71,98,168
Short term borrowings = = -
Trade payables 15,66,51,434 - =
Other financial liabilities 63,48_,85-2 1,18,57.673 -
Total 16,30,40,286 7,18,57,673 7,71,98,168

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The information included in the table has been
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that will be earned on those assets The
inclusion of information on npn-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the
lguidity is managed on a net asset and liahility basis
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{(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars 1 month -1 year 1 year—3 years Mo:::l:san =
As at 315t March, 2020
Trade and other receivables 14,41,43,507
Investments in Mutual funds 1,84,67,722 - -
Loans 73/53,6599 4,82 76,778 -
Other financial assets 24,281 = =
Total 16,99,89,209 4,82,76,778 -
As at 31st March, 2019
Trade and other receivables: 16,06,76,215 - -
Investments in Mutual funds 1,09,867 -
Loans 45,589,058 3,13.30,407 -
Other financial assets 377,495 - -
Total 16,57,22 635 3,13,30,407 &y

The Company has access to committed cradit faciities as described bielow, apart from comfart of avallability of funds from Promoters and Holding
company - The Company expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

{Amount in Rs.)
Unsecured bank overdraft facility, reviewed annually and payable at call s sk
31st March, 2020 315t March,
Amount used 551,15312 =
Amount unused 148,584,688 2,00,00,000

Transition to Ind AS 116 'Leases’

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") through the Companiss (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 has notified Ind A5 116

Leases ('Ind AS 116) which replaces the existing lease standard, Ind AS 17 Leases

The campany has leases that were chassified as finance lease apphying ind as 17 for such leases the right of use and lease liability is transfered to

lease assets on the transition date

Ind AS116 sets out the principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessess and lessirs Effective 1st April,
2014, the Company has adopted Ind AS 116 — 'Leases' and applied the standard to all lesse contracts existing on 15t April, 2019 using the modified
retrospective method. The Company has recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application and right of use asset at an amount equal ta the lease liability adjusted for any prepayments/acoruals

recagnised in the balance sheet as on 315t March, 2019

The company has adopted Ind AS 116, under madified restropective approach, option I from 15t April 2019 Thus the company has not restated the
comparative information. Thereby recognised Rs.17,46,87,280/- as Right to Use and Lease liability as on the application date. There is no impact an

retained earnings as on st April, 2019
The Company has elected below practical expedients on transition to Ind AS 116
(i} Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics

(i} Applied the exemption not to recognise right of use assets and lease habilities with less than 12 months of leaseterm on the date of initial

application

{1t} Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of right of use asset at the date of initial application
{iv) Elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of initial applicatioh. Instead, forcontracts entered into before the
transition date, the Company relied on its assessment made applying Ind AS 17Leases A contract is, or contains, & lesse if the comtract corveys the

right to control the use of an identified assets fora period of time it exchange for consideration

{v) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116, effective annual reporting period heginning st April, 2019 and appliedthe standards to its leases,
prospectively, applying the standards on inftial apphication without making anyadjustment to opening balance of retained earnings.
(w1} The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of ind AS 116 to short term leases of all the assets thathave a lease term of twelve
months or less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value The leasepayments associated with these leases are recognised asan

expense on a straight line basis over the lease term.

(vit) The wesghted average Incremental borrawing rate applied to lease liabilities as at 1g Agril, 201915 9. 9157% PA

Leases as lessee

i) The Movement in Lease liabilities during the year { Amount in Rs.)
Particulars 315t March 2020
Opening Balance 1,61,04,554
Balance asat 1st April, 2019(on adoption of Ind A5 116 - Leases) 17,46,87,280
Additions during FY 2019-20 42,72.76,237
Finance costs incurred during the year 3,74,78,457
Payments of Lease Liabilities 63649422
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 51,69,40,192

(i) The carrying value of the Rights-of-use and depreciation charged during the year

For details pertaining to the carrying value of night of use of lease assets and depreciation charged thereon during the year, kindly

refer note -5 "Property, Plant & Equipments & Intangible Assets

{iiii) A t Recognised in t of Profit & Loss Account during the Year
Particulars for the year ended
31stMarch2020]  31st March 2019

(i} Expenses related to Short Term Lease & Low Asset Value Lease
(1) Lease Expenses 24.20.710 6,21.06,510
Total Expenses 24,20,710 6,21,06,510
{iv) Amounts recognised in stat t of cash flows

Particulars 31st March 2020|
Total Cash outflow for Leases 6,36,49,422 |
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(vl Maturity analysis of lease liabilities

Particulars 31st March 2020
Maturity Analysis of contractual undiscounted cash flows

Less than One year 9,76,38,480

one to three years 30,12,46,015

more than three years 41,3944 313

Total undiscounted Lease Liability 81,28,28,808

Balances of Lease Liabilities

Non Current Lease Liability 71,51,90,328

Current Lease Liability 9,76,38.480

Total Lease Liability 81,28,28,808

Corporate Social Responsibility :

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act. 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibiility (CSR) committes has basn formed by the
Company as this is being the first vear of applicability of the provisions of the corporate Sacial Responsibility, These committes is
carry out the CSR activities as specified in Schadule VI of the Companies Act, 2013 on behalf of the Company

During the year, the Company has required to spend Rs 4,85 346.00 as per the prowvisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013, The CSR committee has decided to spend full amount to one of the Charitable hospital near village in Bharuch in 3rd board
meeting held on 7th February 2020, but dueto this pandemic COVID-19 and lockdown declared by Government of India, the
company could not spend the amount during in last quarter of the F.Y 2019-20, hence the same amount was unspent for the EY
2019-20.

Particulars Amount Contributed | Amount yetto be Total
Contributed
a} Construction / Acquisition of any assets - - - £ = =
b} For purpose other than (a] above - 4,89,346.00 4,89,346.00
Total - 4.89,346.00 4,89,346.00

Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on the B s

Due to outbreak of CoViD-19 globally and in India, the Company's management has made initial assessment of likely adverse impact on business and
financial risks, and believes that the impact is likely to be short term in nature The management does not see any medium to long term risks in the:
Company's ability to continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. Company shut the operstions on 22.03 2020t
05.04.2020 at one plant and on 21 04 2020 at another plant{Salary and wages paid up to 31.03 2020 Rs. 47,20 Lakhs being part of current cast )
during the period Rs.21.50 Crore the closing inventories are being processed and same are under finishing and are likely to be completed and
invaiced in first half of next year. Hence the profits upon such turnover did not get captured during the current period and the same will impact
tuture revenue and profit by reduction in subsequent period due to occupation of resources in carmpleting and invoicing the backlog With the
available financial support the impact would not be material

Further one of the plant is under lackdawn from 1906 2020 0 30.06.2020 {Proposed) Due to CoVIDcondition Interest risk : Thereis no change
expectad inthe interest risk profile of the company as assessable at present. However due to delay and reduction likely shipment likelihood of
increasing interest cost, full impact can not be ascertained presently
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